
 

 

Officer Decisions 
 

Friday, 5th January, 2024 
10.00 am 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
  
1.   Council Taxbase 2024/2025  
 OD-Council Taxbase 2024-25 

OD-Council Taxbase 2024-25 - APP-A 
2 - 7 

 
 

Date Published: 5th January 2025  
Denise Park, Chief Executive 

 

Public Document Pack



 

1 

 

RECORD OF DECISION TAKEN UNDER 
DELEGATED POWERS OUTLINED IN THE 
CONSTITUTION – Part 3 Section 16 
 

REPORT OF: Strategic Director of Finance and Resources 
 
 
LEAD OFFICER: Head of Service Finance 
 
 
DATE: 20th December 2023 

 
 
PORTFOLIOS AFFECTED: n/a 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: All 
 
KEY DECISION: N 
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Council Taxbase 2024/25 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out details of the Council Taxbase for 2024/25 (including 

the Taxbase for each part of the area to which parish precepts relate).   
 

2. NOTICE OF DECISION 
 
2.1 The Strategic Director Finance and Resources, in consultation with the Executive 

Member for Finance and Governance, has determined that:- 
 
a) in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Taxbase)(England) 

Regulations 2012, agrees that the amount calculated by Blackburn with Darwen as its 
Council Taxbase for 2024/25 shall be 37,069.75 (as shown at Appendix B); and 
 

b) that the Council Taxbase for the parished areas shall be as shown at Appendix C. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The calculation of the Council Taxbase is determined in accordance with the Local Authorities 

(Calculation of Taxbase)(England) Regulations 2012. Annually, for the purposes of determining 
the amount of Council Tax payable in the forthcoming financial year (in this instance, 2024/25), 
the Council is required to calculate the Taxbase for the Borough as a whole. As part of this 
process, it is also required to make separate calculations for those parts of the Borough to 
which Town and Parish precepts relate.  
 

3.2 The Council agreed on 18 November 2004 that the setting of the Council Taxbase be delegated 
to the Strategic Director Finance and Resources in consultation with the Executive Member 
Finance and Governance. 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



 

2 

 

3.3 There are two main components used in the Taxbase calculation:-  
 
a) the estimated number of domestic properties in the Borough (or the parish area where this 

applicable) plus or minus estimates of the exemptions, discounts and premiums multiplied 
by the relevant banding factors; 
 

b) the estimated collection rate for the year. 
 

4. RATIONALE 
 

4.1 The calculation of the Council Taxbase determines the taxable capacity of the Borough. In 
setting the Council’s General Fund Revenue Budget for 2024/25, Finance Council will 
determine the amount of income to be raised from Council Tax (otherwise known as the Council 
Tax Requirement). That amount divided by the Council Taxbase determines the Band D 
Council Tax for the year and this amount is the basis of the charges in each of the other Council 
Tax bandings. 
 

4.2 Early approval of the Council Taxbase will allow Council Officers to notify the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Lancashire, the Lancashire Fire and Rescue Authority and Town and Parish 
Councils of the Taxbase as they use this in the calculation of their own precepts. 

 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 
Calculation of the Council Taxbase 

 
5.1 Appendix A provides a note showing how the Council Taxbase is calculated. This is 

exemplified using the calculation of the amounts for Band A. Appendix B provides the full 
calculation of the Council Taxbase for 2024/25. 
 

5.2 As indicated above, the estimated number of domestic properties in the Borough (or the parish 
area where this applicable) plus or minus estimates of the exemptions, discounts and premiums 
multiplied by the relevant banding factors is 38,414.25. The estimated collection rate for 
2024/25 is 96.5% thereby giving a Council Taxbase for 2024/25 of 37,069.75. 
 
Single Person Discount 

 
5.3 As a matter of good practice, it is proposed that for 2024/25, a review be carried out of the 

Council Tax accounts that are in receipt of a single person discount and tax payers challenged 
where there is evidence of other occupants living at their property. It is anticipated that this will 
generate annual revenue savings of approximately £90,000 for the Council. The impact of this 
is factored into the calculation of the Council Taxbase.  
 
Council Tax Support 

 

5.4 The Council Taxbase includes assumptions relating to the numbers of recipients of Council 
Tax Support and how much they will receive. The Council Tax Support Scheme is currently 
being reviewed and will be the subject of a report to Council Forum in January 2024. 
 

6. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 There are no policy implications arising directly from this report. 
 

Page 3



 

3 

 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 The financial implications are as given in the report. The Council Taxbase is used in the 
calculation of the annual Council Tax charge. 
 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from the contents of this report.  

 

9. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no other resources implications arising from the contents of this report.  

 

10. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 There are no equality and health implications arising from the contents of this report.  
 

11. CONSULTATIONS 
 

11.1 None arising from the contents of this report.  
 

12. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
 

12.1 None arising from the contents of this report.   
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A –  Exemplification of the calculation of Band A of the Council Taxbase 
Appendix B –  Calculation of the Council Taxbase 2024/25 
Appendix C –  Town and Parish Council Taxbase 2024/25 
 

 

VERSION: 1 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Dean Langton 

DATE: 
 

December 2023 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 

None 

 

Page 4



Appendix A: CALCULATION OF TAX BASE EXAMPLE - BAND A

Discount/ Premium Payable

25% 15,251 75% 11,438.25

50% 42 50% 21.00

100% 122 0% 0.00

Long-term empties premium – 100% 174 200% 348.00

Long-term empties premium – 200% 53 300% 159.00

Long-term empties premium – 300% 19 400% 76.00

Nil 19,291 100% 19,291.00

34,952 31,333.25

7,373.18

1.00

23,959.07

6/9

15,972.72

96.50%

15,413.67

Number of band D equivalent properties

Estimated collection rate for the year 

Council tax base for Band A

Number of 

adjusted 

chargeable 

dwellings

Equivalent 

number of 

dwellings

Reduction in tax base due to Local Council Tax Support        

Reduction in tax base due to Family Annex discount

Total equivalent number of dwellings 

Ratio to band D 

Page 5



Appendix B: COUNCIL TAX TAXBASE 2024/25 BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN: TOTAL INCLUDING ALL PARISHES

1 CATEGORY BAND  A- BAND  A BAND  B BAND  C BAND  D BAND  E BAND  F BAND  G BAND  H TOTAL

Blackburn / Darwen areas 27,337 6,880 4,857 3,066 1,250 362 158 36 43,946 

Darwen Town Council 8,167 2,290 1,735 830 507 119 52 6 13,706 

Livesey 229 415 1,734 362 503 12 4 1 3,260 

Pleasington 5 4 10 20 52 54 56 8 209 

Tockholes 3 9 35 59 36 33 25 0 200 

Eccleshill 45 36 17 30 19 3 3 0 153 

Yate and Pickup Bank 15 22 30 26 31 20 8 1 153 

North Turton 54 141 437 419 220 223 268 17 1,779 

2 Total dwellings on Valuation list 35,855 9,797 8,855 4,812 2,618 826 574 69 63,406 

No. of Exempt dwellings 820 172 124 50 18 10 8 2 1,204 

No. of Diplomats/Demolished dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

3 Number of Chargeable dwellings 35,035 9,625 8,731 4,762 2,600 816 566 67 62,202 

No of chargeable dwellings subject to disabled relief 160 77 87 44 30 20 12 11 441 

No of dwellings subject to Council tax after disabled relief 160 77 87 44 30 20 12 11 441 

4 Number of adjusted chargeable dwellings 160 34,952 9,635 8,688 4,748 2,590 808 565 56 62,202 

No. of dwellings entitled to Single Person 25% discount 32 14,825 3,034 2,217 881 385 117 61 6 21,558 

No. of dwellings entitled to 25% discount re one person being 

disregarded for Ctax purpose
1 342 106 93 40 17 7 6 1 613 

No. of dwellings entitled to 25% discount 0 84 12 25 11 7 3 2 0 144 

No. of dwellings entitled to 50% discount 0 42 3 3 8 9 10 13 5 93 

No. of dwellings entitled to 100% discount 0 122 29 14 1 5 0 1 0 172 

No. of dwellings charged a premium 100% 0 174 31 16 16 6 3 4 0 250 

No. of dwellings charged a premium 200% 0 53 10 3 2 1 0 0 0 69 

No. of dwellings charged a premium 300% 0 19 4 2 2 0 0 0 0 27 

No. of dwellings with no discount 127 19,291 6,406 6,315 3,787 2,160 668 478 44 39,276 

5 Total equivalent number of dwellings 151.75 31,333.25 8,879.50 8,116.75 4,536.00 2,486.25 774.25 544.25 51.75 56,873.75 

6 Reduction in tax base due to Council Tax support 49.39 7,373.18 976.42 495.88 132.30 59.64 16.35 6.52 0.15 9,109.83 

Reduction in tax base due to Family Annex discount 1.00 1.00 

Total equivalent number of dwellings 102.36 23,959.07 7,903.08 7,620.87 4,403.70 2,426.61 757.90 537.73 51.60 47,762.92 

7 Ratio to Band D 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

BAND "D" EQUIVALENT PROPERTIES 56.87 15,972.72 6,146.84 6,774.12 4,403.70 2,965.85 1,094.74 896.21 103.20 38,414.25 

Band D equivalents, Crown properties 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8 TOTAL BAND "D" EQUIVALENT PROPERTIES 56.87 15,972.72 6,146.84 6,774.12 4,403.70 2,965.85 1,094.74 896.21 103.20 38,414.25 

9 Collection Rate estimated 96.50% 96.50% 96.50% 96.50% 96.50% 96.50% 96.50% 96.50% 96.50% 96.50%

10 COUNCIL TAX BASE 54.88 15,413.67 5,931.70 6,537.03 4,249.57 2,862.05 1,056.42 864.84 99.59 37,069.75 

P
age 6



Appendix C: COUNCIL TAX TAXBASE 2024/25

PARISH GROSS TAXBASE BAND  A- BAND  A BAND  B BAND  C BAND  D BAND  E BAND  F BAND  G BAND  H

GROSS 

TOTAL

Blackburn / Darwen areas 48.29 12,069.65 4,271.70 3,675.72 2,804.67 1,396.74 472.54 240.73 48.00 25,028.04

Darwen Town Council 8.02 3,730.50 1,485.31 1,333.45 765.79 576.19 161.56 77.32 5.00 8,143.14

Livesey 0.56 107.56 260.82 1,357.15 331.10 583.34 13.36 5.83 1.00 2,660.72

Pleasington 0.00 2.30 2.33 8.67 17.00 59.73 72.58 87.50 14.20 264.31

Tockholes 0.00 2.00 6.61 27.58 51.96 42.47 44.24 37.50 0.00 212.36

Eccleshill 0.00 22.97 23.51 13.56 25.48 22.92 3.97 4.58 0.00 116.99

Yate and Pickup Bank 0.00 11.17 15.90 24.16 24.40 35.59 26.00 12.50 2.00 151.72

North Turton 0.00 26.57 80.66 333.83 383.30 248.87 300.49 430.25 33.00 1,836.97

TOTAL 56.87 15,972.72 6,146.84 6,774.12 4,403.70 2,965.85 1,094.74 896.21 103.20 38,414.25

PARISH NET TAXBASE
GROSS 

TOTAL

COLLECTION 

RATE (est)

NET TOTAL 

CT TAXBASE

Blackburn / Darwen areas 25,028.04 96.50% 24,152.06

Darwen Town Council 8,143.14 96.50% 7,858.13

Livesey 2,660.72 96.50% 2,567.59

Pleasington 264.31 96.50% 255.06

Tockholes 212.36 96.50% 204.93

Eccleshill 116.99 96.50% 112.89

Yate and Pickup Bank 151.72 96.50% 146.41

North Turton 1,836.97 96.50% 1,772.68

TOTAL 38,414.25 96.50% 37,069.75

App C

P
age 7


	Agenda
	1 Council Taxbase 2024/2025
	OD-Council Taxbase 2024-25 - APP-A


